

# TWELFTH PARLIAMENT – SIX SESSION – 2022 SELECT COMMITTEE ON BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE

# THE EXIT REPORT FOR THE 12<sup>TH</sup> PARLIAMENT (2017-2022)

CLERKS CHAMBERS
DIRECTORATE OF AUDIT, APPROPRIATIONS & OTHER COMMITTEES
PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS
NAIROBI
JUNE 2022

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABI	LE OF CONTENTS	1
CHAI	RPERSON'S FOREWORD	2
1.	PREFACE	3
1.1.	Establishment of the Committee	3
1.2.	Mandate of the Committee	3
1.3.	Committee Membership	4
1.4.	Committee Secretariat	6
2.	BACKGROUND INFORMATION	8
2.1.	Legal framework	8
2.2.	Institutional Background	8
2.3.	Oversight Scope	9
3.	MILESTONE ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE 12 <sup>TH</sup> PARLIAMENT	10
3.1.	Legislation (Bills)	10
3.2.	Pre-Publication Scrutiny of Draft Legislative Proposals	10
3.3.	The Budget and Appropriations Committee Reports	11
3.4.	Local Visits (Public Hearings)	13
3.5.	Foreign visits (Bench Marking Visits and Conferences)	14
3.6.	Retreat/Workshops/ Breakfast Meetings	15
4.	OUTSTANDING ISSUES	16
5.	OPPORTUNITIES FOR BUDGET OVERSIGHT	17
6.	CHALLENGES	17
ANNE	X: LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS PROCESSED BY BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS	
COM	MITTEE OF THE 12TH DADI LAMENT	10

#### CHAIRPERSON'S FOREWORD

This Exit report is addressed to the Select Committee on Budget and Appropriations successor committee in the hope that it may prove useful as part of the consideration of forward work programmes for the 13<sup>th</sup> Parliament of the National Assembly and the conduct of the committee business.

The report records the main pieces of work which the Committee undertook during 12<sup>th</sup> Parliament. The report then identifies some work which may be required to be conducted in 13<sup>th</sup> Parliament, as well as some outstanding or ongoing work which the Committee believes its successor committee might wish to consider undertaking.

The Committee is grateful to the Offices of the Speaker and Clerk of the National Assembly for the logistical and technical support accorded to it during its sittings. The Committee further wants to thank all the stakeholders for their support. Finally, I wish to express my appreciation to the Honorable Members of the Committee and the Secretariat who played a significant role towards the committee's achievements.

On behalf of the Select Committee on Budget and Appropriations and pursuant to the provisions of Standing Order 200 (1), it is my pleasant privilege and honor to present to this House the Report of the Committee on its consideration of Exit Report for the 12<sup>th</sup> Parliament.

HON. KANINI KEGA, CBS, M.P. CHAIRPERSON, BUDGET, AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE

#### 1. PREFACE

#### 1.1. Establishment of the Committee

- The power of each House of Parliament to establish committees and to make Standing Orders for the orderly conduct of its proceedings, including the proceedings of its committees is provided under Art. 124 of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010.
- 2. The National Assembly Standing Orders has established various committees of the House with distinct Mandates. These Committees under the Directorate of Audit, Appropriations and Other Select Committees play a pivotal role of facilitating the National Assembly fulfill its constitutional mandate of allocation of national revenue, appropriation of funds and oversight over national revenue, expenditure and State organs.
- 3. The Budget and Appropriations Committee is established pursuant Article 221 (4 and 5) of the Constitution and Section 7 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and National Assembly Standing Order 207 to take the lead in matters relating to budgetary oversight in Parliament.

#### 1.2. Mandate of the Committee

- 4. The Budget and Appropriations Committee is mandate as follows:
  - Investigate, inquire into and report on all matters relating to coordination, control and monitoring of the national budget;
  - ii. Discuss and review the Estimates and make recommendations to the House;
  - Examine the Budget Policy Statement, the Medium-Term Debt Strategy Paper and the Division of Revenue Bill (DoRB) presented to the House;
  - iv. Examine Bills related to the national budget, including the Appropriations Bill; and

- Evaluate tax estimates, economic and budgetary policies, and programmes with direct budget outlays.
- In discharge of its mandate, the Committee considers matters related to consideration and approval of the following as follows: -
  - 1. National Budgets;
  - 2. Budget Policy Statement and Medium-Term Debt Strategy Paper;
  - 3. The Division for Revenue Bill;
  - 4. The Annual Appropriation Bill;
  - 5. The Supplementary Appropriation Bill;
  - 6. The County Allocation Revenue Bill; and
  - 7. The County Conditional Grants Bill.

# 1.3. Committee Membership

6. The Committee comprises of the following members in the First to Third Session: -

M	EMBE	R OF PAI	RLIAMENT			CONSTIT	<b>FUENCY</b>	<b>PARTY</b>
1.	Hon.	Kimani	Ichung'wah,	CBS,	M.P-	Kikuyu		Jubilee
	Chair	person						
2.	Hon.	Moses	Lessonet,	M.P-	Vice	Eldama R	lavine	Jubilee
	Chair	person						
3.	Hon. (	CPA John I	Mbadi, EGH, C	BS, M.F	<b>)</b> .	Suba Sout	h	ODM
4.	Hon. I	Richard On	yonka, M.P.			Kitutu	Chache	Ford
						South		Kenya
5.	Hon. S	Samwel Mo	oroto, M.P.			Kapenguri	a	Jubilee
6.	Hon. N	Millie Odhi	iambo, M.P.			Suba Nort	h	ODM
7.	Hon. 7	walib Bad	ly, M.P.			Jomvu		ODM
8.	Hon. (	Dr.) Gideo	n Ochanda, M.	P.		Bondo		ODM
9.	Hon. J	ames Mwa	ngi Gakuya, M	.P.		Embakasi	North	Jubilee
10	Hon.	(Dr.) Maka	ıli Mulu Bensor	n, M.P.		Kitui Cent	ral	Wiper
11	Hon. N	Moses Kiar	ie Kuria, M.P.			Gatundu S	outh	Jubilee
12	Hon. E	Benard Mas	saka Shinali, M	.P.		Ikolomani		Jubilee
13	Hon. J	ohn Muchi	iri Nyaga, M.P.			Manyatta		Jubilee
14	Hon. J	ude Njomo	o, M.P.			Kiambu To	own	Jubilee
15	Hon. (	Dr.) Korei	Ole Lemein, M	I.P.		Narok Sou	ith	Jubilee

16. Hon. Sarah Paulata Korere, M.P.	Laikipia North	Jubilee
17. Hon. Naisula Lesuuda, OGW, M.P.	Samburu West	KANU
18. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.	Nambale	ANC
19. Hon. Danson Mwashako, M.P.	Wundanyi	Wiper
20. Hon. Fatuma Gedi Ali, M.P.	Wajir County	PDR
21. Hon. Florence Chepng'etich Koskey Bore,	Kericho County	Jubilee
M.P.		
22. Hon. James Gichuki Mugambi, M.P.	Othaya	Jubilee
23. Hon. (Dr.) John K. Mutunga, M.P.	Tigania West	Jubilee
24. Hon. (Eng.) Mark Nyamita, M.P.	Uriri	ODM
25. Hon. Paul Abuor, M.P.	Rongo	ODM
26. Hon. Qalicha Gufu Wario, M.P.	Moyale	Jubilee
27. Hon. Wangari Mwaniki, M.P.	Kigumo	Jubilee

# 7. The Committee comprises of the following members in the Fourth to Fifth Session

Member	Constituency	Party
1. Hon. Kanini Kega, CBS, M.P	Kieni	Jubilee
Chairperson		
2. Hon. Benard Masaka Shinali, M.P	Ikolomani	Jubilee
Vice Chairperson		
3. Hon. CPA John Mbadi, EGH, CBS, M.P.	Suba South	ODM
4. Hon. Emmanuel Wangwe, CBS, M.P.	Navakholo	Jubilee
5. Hon. Fatuma Gedi Ali, CBS, M.P.	Wajir County	PDR
6. Hon. Wangari Mwaniki, OGW, M.P.	Kigumo	Jubilee
7. Hon. CPA Moses K. Lessonet, CBS, M.P.	Eldama Ravine	Jubilee
8. Hon. Samwel Moroto, M.P.	Kapenguria	Jubilee
9. Hon. Millie Odhiambo, M.P.	Suba North	ODM
10.Hon. Richard Onyonka, M.P.	Kitutu Chache	Ford
	South	Kenya
11.Hon. (Dr.) Makali Mulu Benson, M.P.	Kitui Central	Wiper
12.Hon. Twalib Bady, M.P.	Jomvu	ODM
13.Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.	Kiambu Town	Jubilee
14.Hon. Sarah Paulata Korere, M.P.	Laikipia North	Jubilee
15.Hon. Josephine Naisula Lesuuda, OGW,	Samburu West	KANU

M.P.

<ol><li>Hon. Alfred Kiptoo Keter, M.P.</li></ol>	Nandi Hills	Jubilee
17.Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.	Nambale	ANC
18.Hon. Florence Chepng'etich Koskey Bore,	Kericho County	Jubilee
M.P.		
19.Hon. James Gichuki Mugambi, M.P.	Othaya	Jubilee
20.Hon. Danson Mwashako, M.P.	Wundanyi	Wiper
21.Hon. (Eng.) Mark Nyamita, M.P.	Uriri	ODM
22.Hon. Paul Abuor, M.P.	Rongo	ODM
23.Hon. Mercy Wanjiku Gakuya, M.P.	Kasarani	Jubilee
24.Hon. CPA Francis Kuria Kimani, M.P.	Molo	Jubilee
25.Hon. Samuel Atandi, M.P.	Alego Usonga	ODM
26.Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P.	Kajiado North	Jubilee
27.Hon. Marselino Arbelle, M.P.	Laisamis	Jubilee

# 8. Changes within the Committee membership during the term:

1.	Hon. Kimani Ichung'wah, CBS	(2017-2019)
2.	Hon. (Dr.) Gideon Ochanda, M.P.	(2017-2019)
3.	Hon. James Mwangi Gakuya, M.P.	(2017-2019)
4.	Hon. Moses Kiarie Kuria, M.P.	(2017-2019)
5.	Hon. John Muchiri Nyaga	(2017-2019)
6.	Hon. (Dr.) Korei Ole Lemein, M.P.	(2017-2019)
7.	Hon. (Dr.) John K. Mutunga, M.P.	(2017-2019)
8.	Hon. Qalicha Gufu Wario, M.P.	(2017-2019)

# 1.4. Committee Secretariat

# The Committee Secretariat comprises of the following officers:

1. Mr. Joseph Ndirangu	Fiscal Analyst I/ Clerk of the Budget		
	and Appropriations Committee		
2. Mr. Danson Kachumbo	Fiscal Analyst I/ Clerk of the Budget		

3. Mr. Ronald Walala

4. Ms. Pauline Wanjiru

5. Ms. Winfred Kizia

6. Mr. Benard Omondi

7. Mr. Eugene Luteshi

8. Mr. George Mbaluka

and Appropriations Committee

Legal Counsel

Hansard Reporter

Media Relations

Serjeant-at-arms

Audio Officer

Office Assistant

#### 2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

#### 2.1. Legal framework

- 9. Art. 93 (1) of the Constitution of Kenya establishes Parliament of Kenya which consists of the National Assembly and the Senate. Further, Art 95 provides for the role of the National Assembly amongst others to:
  - deliberate on and resolve issues of concern to the people;
  - ii. enact legislations
  - determine allocation of national revenue between the two levels of governments the National government and County governments;
  - appropriate funds for expenditure by the national government and national State organs;
  - v. exercise oversight over national revenue and its expenditure;
  - vi. exercise oversight over State organs; and
  - vii. review the conduct in the office of the President, Deputy President and other State officers and initiate the process of removal from office.
- 10.In addition, Art 124 of the Constitution empowers Parliament to establish Committees and to make Standing Orders for orderly conduct of its proceedings including the proceedings of its committee. The National Assembly Standing Orders has established various Committees of the House with distinct mandates.

# 2.2. Institutional Background

- 11.Pursuant to National Assembly Standing Order 207, in executing its Mandate, The Committee oversees public finance management and therefore oversights National Treasury. In addition, the committee is responsible in the scrutiny of Parliamentary Service Commission as well as Office of Auditor General budget estimates once they submitted to Parliament.
- 12. Pursuant to the provisions of Standing Order No. 207, It is a Select Committee that was constituted by the House and served for three years and constituted thereafter to serve for the remainder of the parliamentary term.

#### 2.3. Oversight Scope

- 13. The report records the main pieces of work which the Committee undertook during 12<sup>th</sup> Parliament. Further, some outstanding or ongoing work which the Committee believes its successor committee might wish to consider undertaking. The specific objectives of the Exit report pursuant to National Assembly Standing Order 200 are as follows: -
  - Assess the contribution of the Committee to the legislative development in Public Finance for the last 5 years;
  - ii. Assess the extent to which the Committee achieved its oversight mandate in relation to the project, activities and programmes implemented by the line Ministries and other agencies in the past 5 years;
  - iii. Assess the role Committee played in budgetary allocation and implementation of the programme-based budgets in the respective government institutions; and
  - iv. Assess measurable contribution of the capacity building and studies undertaken by the Committee in the last 5 years.

#### 3. MILESTONE ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE 12<sup>TH</sup> PARLIAMENT

- 14. The Committee has had a full programme of work during the 12th Parliament. The Committee made the following achievements,
  - Examine various budget estimates submitted to Parliament as well as other related budget documents and report their findings to the House.
     This enriched the debate of the budget on the floor of the House.
  - Pursuant to Article 118, 201 and 221 of the Constitution, the Committee carried out field visits for public participation which gave the public the opportunity to express their views and enriched the Committee's decision making in various budgets approved by the National Assembly.
  - Advised the speaker on various legislative proposals in relation to Article 114 of the Constitution. Some of the legislative proposals have been enacted.

## 3.1. Legislation (Bills)

- 15. The committee lead the House in approving the following legislations as follows:
  - 1. The Division for Revenue Bill- (6) Bills
  - 2. The Annual Appropriation Bill (5) Bills
  - 3. The Supplementary Appropriation Bill- (10) Bills
  - 4. The County Allocation Revenue Bill- (6) Bills
  - 5. The County Conditional Grants Bill- (1)

# 3.2. Pre-Publication Scrutiny of Draft Legislative Proposals

16. Pursuant to Article 114 of the Constitution and in conformity with the National Assembly Standing Orders 114 (3) the Committee discussed and considered several legislative proposals and forwarded its advisory opinion/recommendations to the Speaker. The committee was able to scrutinize 198 legislative proposals during the period under the review (see the attached annex).

#### 3.3. The Budget and Appropriations Committee Reports

17. During the 12<sup>th</sup> Parliament, the Committee was able lay thirty-seven (37) committee reports before the house. These reports were namely on:

# a) The Budget Policy Statement- (5) reports

18.The Committee considered the Budget Policy Statements for the fiscal years 2018/19 and 2022/23 and submitted the reports to the House for debate and approval. The Budget Policy Statement is a policy document that effectively sets the budget ceiling for Ministries, Departments and Agencies under the National Government as well as give indicative ceilings for equitable share to Counties in a given fiscal year. In addition, it provides the macroeconomic outlook of the domestic and international economy in a manner that informs the House on budgetary decisions. The Committee strongly advised that the National Treasury should stick to the guidelines of the Budget Policy Statement as approved by the House when making estimates of revenues and expenditures to reduce budget deficit while maintain sound budget framework.

#### b) The Division of Revenue Bill (6) reports

- 19.During the stated period, the Committee processed six Division of Revenue Bills which were referred to the Committee by the House in concurrence with Article 202, 203,205 and 218 (2) of the Constitution. The Bill sets out the indicative sharable revenue, national government share of revenue, county equitable share of revenue, conditional grants, and the Equalization fund.
- 20. The enactment of the Division of Revenue Bill is critical in setting the stage for the preparation of the County Allocation of Revenue Bill which will inform the firming up and completion of preparation of the annual budget estimates for the forty-seven (47) county governments.

# c) The County Allocation Revenue Bill (5) reports

- 21.In accordance with Article 110 of the Constitution, Section 191(4) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Standing Orders 41; I am honoured to present to this House, on behalf of the Members of the Budget and Appropriations Committee, the Committee's Report on the County Allocation Revenue Bill (Senate Bill No. 30 of 2021).
- 22. The County Allocation of Revenue Bill is an annual legislation introduced in accordance with the provisions of Article 218 of the Constitution with the objective of equitably allocating the share of national revenue amongst the forty-seven (47) Counties. The Senate on Thursday, 3rd June 2021 passed with amendments the County Allocation of Revenue Bill, 2021 and sought concurrence of the National Assembly on the said Bill in accordance with provisions of Article 112(1) (b) of the Constitution.

# d) The Annual Estimates of Revenue and Expenditure (5) reports and the Annual Appropriation Bill (5) reports

23.In adherence to its mandate given under Article 221(4&5), the Committee received and considered two Estimates of Revenue and Expenditure for the five financial years (FY2018/19 to 2022/2023) within the stated period. Subsequently the Committee, guided by need for realistic macroeconomic fiscal framework made recommendations both financial and non-financial and submitted to the House for approval. This is after taking into consideration the recommendations of National Treasury as well as recommendations from departmental Committees and various stakeholders including the public.

# e) The Supplementary Estimates (10) reports

24. The Committee received a total of 10 supplementary budgets, two for each financial year seeking to revise expenditure estimates based on among others changes in revenue estimates. It is worth noting in the previous years, the National Treasury used to submit more than two supplementary budgets. However, the Committee through its recommendations to the House were capped to two.

# f) The County Governments Conditional Grants Bill (1) report

- 25.Article 202(2) of the Constitution provides that county governments may be given additional allocations from the national government's share of revenue, either conditionally or unconditionally. This Bill therefore seeks to provide a framework for the transfer of additional allocations under Article 202(2) of the Constitution.
- 26. In addition, the Bill seeks to comply with the orders of the court in High Court Petition No. 252 of 2016. In the matter the court held that Article 202 of the Constitution as read with Article 218(1)(a) of the Constitution did not permit conditional or unconditional grants to be provided for in the Annual Division of Revenue Act. The court held that such conditional or unconditional grants could be issued to the county level of government under Article 190 of the Constitution or through an agreement between the two levels of government that respects the institutional and functional integrity of both levels of government but not in the Annual Division of Revenue Act.

## 3.4. Local Visits (Public Hearings)

27. Public hearings are a crucial part in the budget making process for both the Executive and Legislative arms of Government. Article 221(5) of the Constitution states that in reviewing the estimates, the Committee (in this case the Budget and Appropriations Committee) shall seek representations from the public when discussing and reviewing the Budget Estimates before making recommendations to the National Assembly. Article 201(a) of the Constitution states that public participation enhances openness and accountability in financial matters. Further, Section 39(2) of the Public Management Act requires the Budget and Appropriations Committee to consider the views of the Cabinet Secretary and the public on the estimates, when making its recommendations to the National Assembly. In fulfilling the mandate highlighted above, during the period under review the Committee was able to visit all the 47 counties to enhance public participation in the budget making process.

# 3.5. Foreign visits (Bench Marking Visits and Conferences)

28.The Constitution and the Public Finance Management (PFM) Act 2012, bestows a lot of responsibilities to the Budget and Appropriations Committee such as providing leadership in matters related to the Budget. Over the 5 years the Committee has been in place, the committee has done both benchmarking visits as well as conferences to learn best practices in other jurisdictions to improve on effectively executing its mandate.

- 29.More importantly, the Committee has had a challenge incorporating public views which is one of key features in the Constitution and other legislation such as PFM, Act 2012. Shortly after the submission of Budget Estimates in Parliament, the Committee is expected to conduct public budget hearing. Through the foreign visits the committee was able to tackle the challenge.
- 30.The Committee undertook the following capacity building visits in following countries namely Germany, Indonesia, United States of America and Switzerland. The conferences that the committee undertook during the period under review are World Bank/IMF bi-annual meetings, France, and Indonesia. The conferences main purposes were exchange of ideas and bring attention to the committee the various policies and their implications to the Kenyan economy.
- 31. Some key lessons learnt from foreign visits are as follows:
  - The National Treasury should submit budget documents to the House which have a realistic macro-economic framework
  - County governments should operate a balanced budget to prevent spiraling of the public debt
  - Institutions such as the Controller of Budget, Auditor General and Parliamentary Budget Office should be given independence in carrying out their professional mandates
  - 4. Reports that are approved by the House should be binding.

# 3.6. Retreat/Workshops/ Breakfast Meetings

32.During the period under review, the committee organized numerous reports writing retreats on the various reports highlighted above. The breakfast meetings were as result of invites from non-governmental organizations such as International Institute for Legislative Affairs and Global Fund. The main purpose was to have a consultative meeting to enrich current legislations and policies.

#### 4. OUTSTANDING ISSUES

- 33. The Committee recognizes that its successor committee will have complete autonomy to consider and agree its own work programme. It has however, identified some outstanding or ongoing areas of work from 12<sup>th</sup> Parliament, which its successor Committee may wish to follow up in 13<sup>th</sup> Parliament. The Committee draws these pieces of work to the attention of its successor committee, in order that it can consider whether it would wish to factor them into its work programme.
- 34. The Committee notes that the following Legislative proposals were not processed and may thus be required to be introduced afresh and taken up when the new House/ committee is in place. These are:

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
1	The Animal Foodstuffs Bill,2020	Hon. Patrick Mariru, M.P.
2	The Constitution of Kenya (amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Ahmed Kolosh, M.P.
3	The Constitution of Kenya (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. John Paul Mwirigi, M.P.
4	The Constitution of Kenya (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Abdikhaim Osman M.P.
5	The Constitution of Kenya (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
6	The Constitution of Kenya (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
7	The Kenya Citizen and Migration (Amendment) Bill 2021	Hon. Zuleikha Hassan, M.P.
8	The Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Swarup Mishra, M.P.
9	The Kenya Medical Training College(amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Oku Kaunya, M. P
10	The Kenya Water Towers Bill,2021	Hon. Hassan Hulufo M.P.
11	The Media Council of Kenya(amendment) Bill,2022	Hon. William Kisang Kipkemoi, M.P.
12	The Medical Social Workers (Training, Registration and Licensing) Bill 2022	Hon. Sabina Chege M.P.
13	The Mining (amendment)Bill,2021	Hon. Ayub Savula, M. P
14	The National Employment Authority (Amendment) Bill 2021	Hon. Wambugu Ngunjiri, M. P
15	The NHIF (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Alfred Agoi, M. P
16	The Special Economic Zones (amendment) 2021	Hon. Cornelly Serem, M. P
17	The Value added tax (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Beatrice Adagala, M. P
18	The Wildlife Conservation and management (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Jones Mlolwa, M. P

#### 5. OPPORTUNITIES FOR BUDGET OVERSIGHT

- 35.A critical review and analysis of the performance of the Select Committee on Budget and Appropriations, reveals that there is need for Parliament to strengthen its oversight of budget implementation. While budget formulation and approval has been largely successful, oversight on budget execution which refers to monitoring of various performance targets and outputs has largely been inadequate.
- 36.It is cardinal going forward to continuously maintain collegial fruitful working relations with other Committees, the National Treasury, Controller of Budget and other agencies including the public as part of the oversight mandate of the Committee.
- 37. There is also need for the Committee to leverage on support of the leadership of the House especially those pertaining to procedural matters and getting requisite resources for facilitating the attainment of the Committee's mandate.

#### 6. CHALLENGES

The Committee encountered the following challenges in serving its mandates:-

- a) Inadequate information in the documents submitted to Parliament for scrutiny and reluctance by National Treasury to share and declare their programmes implementations plans as well as projects;
- b) Delay in submission of Controller of Budget reports on National Government Budget Implementation to Parliament. This made the committee ineffective in carrying out its oversight mandate in Budget Implementation;
- c) Limited committee rooms;
- d) Lack of suitable and adequate facilities for video conferencing during virtual committee meetings;
- e) There were no policy guidelines enumerating the ideal virtual platforms for

the conduct of meetings; and

f) Financial challenges during organization of local and foreign visits which impacted negatively on execution of Committee work plans.

	hall.
	Able
Signed:	MAT
	HØN. KANINI KEGA, CBS, M.P.
CHAIRPI	ERSON, BUDGET, AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE
Date:	1/6/2022

# ANNEX: LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS PROCESSED BY BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE OF THE 12<sup>TH</sup> PARLIAMENT

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
1.	The Agricultural Professionals Registration and Licensing Bill 2019	Hon. John Mutunga, M.P.
2.	The Alcoholic drinks Control (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Danson Mwashako, M.P.
3.	The Assisted Productive Technology Bill 2018	Hon. Millie Odhiambo M.P.
4.	The Banking (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P
5.	The Banking (Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon. James Githua Kamau, M.P.
6.	The Banking Laws (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Benjamin Dalu Stephen Tayari, M.P
7.	The Banking(amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Nelson Koech, M.P.
8.	The Basic Education (Amendment) 2018	Hon. Zulekha Hassan, M.P.
9.	The Basic Education (Amendment) 2018	Hon. Sabina Chege, M.P.
10.	The Basic Education (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Ronald Tonui, M.P.
11.	The Basic Education (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Chris Wamalwa, M.P.
12.	The Basic Education (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Anthony Oluoch, M.P.
13.	The Basic Education (Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon. Mary Wamaua, M.P.
14.	The Basic Education(amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Samuel Arama, M.P.
15.	The Bio Security Bill,2020	Hon. Jeniffer Shamala, M.P.
16.	The Biomedical Engineering Bill,2020	Hon. Stephen Mule, M.P.
17.	The Births and Deaths Registration (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Martha Wangari, M.P.
18.	The Breastfeeding working mothers Bill 2018	Hon. Sabina Chege M.P.
19.	The Cancer Prevention and Control (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Gladys Wanga, M.P.
20.	The Cancer Prevention and Control (Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon. Mohammed Ali, M.P.
21.	The Central Bank of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Oroo Oyioka, M.P.
22.	The Chief's (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Owen Yaa Baya, M.P.
23.	The Child Justice Bill 2018	Hon. Millie Odhiambo M.P.
24.	The Children Bill 2019	Hon. Lilian Gogo, M.P.
25.	The Children(amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Edith Nyenze, M.P.
26.	The Coconut and Cashew nut Bill,2021	Hon. Owen Baya, M.P.
27.	The Comments on Kenya Reparations Bill 2017	Hon. Boss Shollei, M.P.
28.	The Community Health Workers Bill 2019	Hon. Martin Peters Owino, M.P.
29.	The Community Health Workers Bill, 2020	Hon. Babu Owino, MP

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
30.	The Community Health Workers Bill,2021	Hon.Mishi Mboko, M.P.
31.	The Community Oral Health Officers Bill 2018	Hon. Moses Injendi Malulu, M.P.
32.	The Constitution (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Vincent Kemosi, M.P.
33.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Kassait Kamket. M.P.
34.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Gladys Boss Shollei, M.P.
35.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Cornelly Serem, M. P
36.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Joshua Kutuny, M.P.
37.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Gideon Keter, M.P.
38.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Caleb Kositany, M.P.
39.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. George Kariuki, GK, M.P.
40.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Peter Kaluma, M.P.
41.	The Constitution of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. David Ole Sonkok, M.P.
42.	The Constitution of Kenya Amendment Bill, 2020	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
43.	The Copyright (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Gideon Keter, M.P.
44.	The Covid-19 and other pandemics Bill 2020	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
45.	The Crops (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Tandaza Kassim, M.P.
46.	The Crops (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Moses Kuria, M.P.
47.	The Data Protection and Privacy Bill 2018	Hon. Omar Mohammed Maalim, M.P.
48.	The Dental Technologists Bill 2019	Hon. Danson Mwashako, M.P.
49.	The Elevator Safety Authority Bill,2020	Hon. Benjamin Washiali, M.P.
50.	The Employment (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Gideon Keter, M.P.
51.	The Employment (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Cpt (Rtd) Didmus Wekesa Barasa, M.P.
52.	The Engineering technologist (Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon. Eve Obara, M.P.
53.	The Environment Management & Coordination (Amendment) Bill, 2020	Hon. Charity Chepkwony, M.P.
54.	The Equalization Fund Bill 2018	Hon. Kassait Kamket, M.P.
55.	The Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. George Peter Kaluma, M.P.
56.	The Excise duty (Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.
57.	The Fisheries Management(amendment)Bill,2021	Hon. Ruweida Obo, M.P.

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
58.	The Food Security Bill 2019	Hon. Silas Tiren, M.P.
59.	The Food Security Bill 2020	Hon Jennifer Shamalla, M.P.
60.	The Forest Conservation and Management (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Charity Kathambi Chepkwony, M.P.
61.	The Gaming Bill 2018	Hon. Victor Munyaka, M.P.
62.	The Geriatric Bill 2019	Hon. Gathoni Wamuchomba M.P.
63.	The Gold Processing Bill,2021	Hon.Benard Shinali, M.P.
64.	The Health (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Mwambu Mabongah, M.P.
65.	The Health (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon.Caleb Kositany, M.P.
66.	The Health (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Zachary Kweya Thuku, M.P.
67.	The Health (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon.Rehema Jaldesa, M.P.
68.	The Health (Amendment) Bill, 2018	Hon. Benjamin Gathiru Mwangi, M.P.
69.	The Health (Amendment) Bill, 2019	Hon. Geofrey Osotsi, M.P.
70.	The Health (amendment) Bill, 2019	Hon. Alice Wahome, M.P.
71.	The Health Service Commission Bill 2019	Hon. Patrick Munene, M.P.
72.	The Health (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Gathoni Muchomba, M.P.
73.	The Health (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon.Jared Okelo, M.P.
74.	The HELB(Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon.Caleb Amisi, M.P.
75.	The Higher Education Loans Board (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Gideon Keter, M.P.
76.	The Higher Education Loans Board (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Paul Mwirigi, M.P.
77.	The Higher Education Loans Board (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Kassait Kamket. M.P.
78.	The IEBC (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
79.	The IEBC (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Peter Kaluma, M.P.
80.	The Immunization Bill,2021	Hon.Joseph Manje, M.P.
81.	The Implementation of Government Assurances Bill 2018	Hon.Godfrey Osotsi, M.P.
82.	The Inclusive Growth Coordination Authority Bill 2018	Hon.John Waluke Koyi, M.P.
83.	The Independent Electoral and Boundaries Commission (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. William Cheptumo, M.P.
84.	The Industrial Training Bill 2018	Hon.Jude Njomo, M.P.
85.	The Information Communication Technology Practitioners Bill 2019	Hon.Godfrey Osotsi, M.P.

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
86.	The Institute of Directors Bill 2018	Hon. Chris Wamalwa, M.P.
87.	The Institute of Social Work Professionals Bill 2019	Hon. Joshua Kivinda Kimilu, M.P.
88.	The Institution of Surveyors Bill, 2020 by Hon. Murungi Kathuri, M.P.	Hon. Murungi Kathuri, M.P.
89.	The Insurance Professionals Bill 2019	Hon.Benjamin Washiali, M.P.
90.	The Insurance Professionals Registeration Bill 2019	Hon.Benjamin Washiali, M.P.
91.	The Kenya Cancer Fund 2019	Hon.Catherine Waruguru, M.P.
92.	The Kenya Citizen and Migration (Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon Benjamin Gathiru Mwangi, M.P.
93.	The Kenya Civil Contingencies Bill 2018	Hon. Adan Keynan, M.P.
94.	The Kenya Coast Guard (amendment) Bill,2020	Hon.Paul Koinange, M.P.
95.	The Kenya Deposit Insurance (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Rahim Dahood, M.P.
96.	The Kenya Food and Drugs Authority Bill 2018	Hon.Robert Pukose, M.P.
97.	The Kenya Information and Communications (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Malulu Injendi, M.P.
98.	The Kenya Information and Communications (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Elisha Odhiambo, M.P.
99.	The Kenya Medical laboratories and Technicians (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Abdulswamad Sharrif M.P.
100	The Kenya National Blood Transfusion Service Bill 2019	Hon.Sabina Chege M.P.
101	The Kenya National Commission on Human Rights (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
102	The Kenya Reparations Bill 2017	Hon. Gladys Boss Shollei, M.P.
103	The Kenya Roads (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon.Naisula Lesuuda, M.P.
104	The Kenya Tea Development Authority Bill 2019	Hon. Elisha Odhiambo, M.P.
105	The Kenya Uwezo Fund Bill 2018	Hon.Kangongo Bowen, M.P.
106	The Lake Turkana Development Authority Bill, 2021	Hon. Christopher Nakuleu MP
107	The Land (Amendment) Bill, 2018	Hon. Simon Kingara, M.P.
108	The Land Control (Amendment) 2020	Hon.Kubai Iringo, M.P.
109	The Land Disposition Review Bill,2021	Hon.Dr. Oundo, M.P.
110	The Law Society of Kenya (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Jennifer Shamalla
111	The Livestock and Livestock Products Marketting Promotion	Hon. (Major Rtd) Bashir

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
	Board Bill 2018	Abdulliah, M.P.
112	The Lobbying Bill 2017	Hon. Patrick Musimba, M.P.
113	The Marginalized Counties Bill,2021	Hon.Ruweida Obo, M.P.
114	The Medical Fund Bill 2018	Hon. Alfred Keter, M.P.
115	The Medical Fund Bill 2018	Hon. Alfred Keter, M.P.
116	The Medical Social Workers (Training, Registeration and Licensing) Bill 2019	Hon. Vincent Kemosi, M.P.
117	The Mental Health Bill 2020	Hon. Anthony Oluoch, M.P.
118	The Microfinance (amendment) Bill,2020	Hon.Nelson Koech, M.P.
119	The National Blood Transfusion Services Bill,2020	Hon.Owen Baya, M.P.
120	The National Cereals and Produce Board (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon.Caleb Kositany, M.P.
121	The National Construction Authority (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. David Gikaria, M.P.
122	The National Disaster Management Authority Bill 2017	Hon. Kimani Ichung'wah, M.P.
123	The National Employment Authority (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Charles Njagua Kanyi M.P.
124	The National Government Constituencies Development Fund (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon.Tindi Mwale, M.P.
125	The National Government Constituencies Fund Amendment) Bill, 2020	Hon. Maoka Maore, M.P.
126	The National Government Coordination (amendment) Bill	Hon.Paul Koinange, M.P.
127	The National Government Co-ordination (Amendment) Bill	Hon. Nasri Sahal Ibrahim, M.P.
128	The National Government Co-ordination (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Moses Injendi Malulu, M.P.
129	The National Government Co-ordination (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Michael Muchira, M.P.
130	The National Government Co-ordination (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Marwa Maisori, M.P.
131	The National Government Coordination (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Joseph Gichuhi, M.P.
132	The National Health Facilities Bill, 2020	Hon.Gladys Wanga, M.P.
133	The National Hospital Insurance Fund (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Emmanuel Wangwe, M.P.
134	The National Hospital Insurance Fund (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon.Zuleikha Hassan, M.P.
135	The National Land Commission (Amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. Prof.Jacqueline Oduol, M.P.
136	The National Police Service Commission(amendment)Bill,2021	Hon.Peter Masara, M.P.
	The National Youth Employment Empowerment and Service Bill 2019	Hon. Anthony Oluoch, M.P.

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
138	The Natural Resources (Benefit Sharing) Bill 2018	Hon. Kassim Sawa Tandaza, M.P.
139	The NGCDF (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Makali Mulu, M.P.
140	The NGCDF (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon. John Paul Mwirigi, M.P.
141	The NGCDF(Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Peter Francis Masara
142	The NGCDF(Amendment) Bill 2020	Hon.Ahmed Abdisalan Ibrahim, M.P.
143	The NGCDF (amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Ndindi Nyoro, M.P.
144	The NHIF (amendment) Bill,2021	Hon.David Ole Sonkok, M.P.
145	The Opticians Bill,2020	Hon.Christopher Omulele, M.P.
146	The Parliamentary Pensions (Amendment) Bill	Hon. Wangari Mwaniki, M.P.
147	The Parliamentary Pensions (Amendment) Bill	Hon.John Mbadi, M.P.
148	The Parliamentary Pensions (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. George Peter Kaluma, M.P.
149	The Parliamentary Pensions (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Andrew Mwadime, M.P.
150	The Parliamentary Service (amendment) Bill, 2018	Hon. Patrick Mweu Musimba, M.P.
151	The Penal Code (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon.Fabian Kyule, M.P.
152	The Penal Code (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. David Gikaria, M.P.
153	The PFM (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Anthony Oluoch, M.P.
154	The Preference and Reservations Bill 2019	Hon. Gideon Keter, M.P.
155	The Presidential Archives and Records Bill 2018	Hon. Patrick Mweu Musimba, M.P.
156	The Presidential Archives and Records Bill 2020	Hon.Patrick Musimba, M.P.
157	The Prevention of Terrorism (amendment),2020	Hon.Paul Koinange, M.P.
158	The Protection Against Domestic Violence (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Jessica Mbalu, M.P.
159	The Public Debt Management Authority Bill, 2020	Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.
160	The Public Finance Management (Amendment) 2018	Hon.Paul Abuor, M.P.
161	The Public Finance Management (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Kimani Ichung'wah, M.P.
162	The Public Finance Management (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Alexander Kosgey, M.P.
163	The Public Finance Management (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Sabina Chege, M.P.

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
164	The Public Fundraising Appeals Bill 2019	Hon.Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
165	The Public Participation Bill 2018	Hon.Chris Wamalwa, M.P.
166	The Public Participation Bill 2019	Hon. Joash Nyamoko, M.P.
167	The Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Florence Mutua, M.P.
168	The Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Andrew Mwadime, M.P.
169	The Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon.Rigathi Gachagua, M.P.
170	The Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Elijah Memusi, M.P.
171	The Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Eng.Jungle Wainaina, M.P.
172	The Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (amendment) Bill,2019	Hon. Richard Nyagaka Tongi, M.P.
173		Hon. Oku Kaunya, M.P
174	The Public Service Internship Bill 2019	Hon. Naisula Lesuuda, M.P.
175	The Publishing Corporation of Kenya Bill 2018	Hon. Beatrice Nyaga, M.P.
176	The Radiographers Bill 2018	Hon. Sabina Chege, M.P.
177	The Real Estate Regulatory Authority Bill 2019	Hon. Benjamin Washiali, M.P.
178	The Referendum Bill 2019	Hon. Robert Pukose, M.P.
179	The Regional Development Authority	Hon. Katoo Ole Metito
180	The Representation of Special Interest Groups Laws (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
181	The Reproductive Healthcare Bill 2020	Hon. Millie Odhiambo M.P.
182	The Retirement Benefits (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. James Githua Kamau, M.P.
183	The Road Accident Fund Bill 2020	Hon. Jeremiah Kioni, M.P.
184	The Sexual Offences (amendment) Bill 2020	Hon. Florence Mutua, M.P.
185	The Social Assistance (Amendment) Bill 2018	Hon. Caleb Amisi, M.P.
186	The Social Workers Bill 2019	Hon. Gladys Wanga, M.P.
187	The Sports (Amendment) Bill 2019	Hon. Godfrey Osotsi, M.P.
188	The Statute Law (Miscellaneous Amendments Bill 2018	Hon. Righathi Gachagua, M.P.
189	The Sugar Bill 2018	Hon. Wafula Wamunyinyi, M.P.
190	The Teachers Service Commission (Amendment) Bill 2017	Hon. Ronald Tonui, M.P.
191	The Traffic (Amendment) Bill, 2021	Hon. Esther Pasaris M.P.

	NAME OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL	SPONSOR OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL
192	The Unemployment Insurance Authority Bill,2021	Hon. Benard Shinali, M.P.
193	The Valuers Bill,2020	Hon. Michael Muchira, M.P.
194	The Veterinary Surgeon and Veterinary Paraprofessionals (Amendment) Bill, 2018	Hon. Qalicha Gufu Wario, M.P.
195	The Whistle-blower Protection Bill, 2020	Hon. Irene Kasalu, M.P.
196	The Whistle-blower Protection Bill, 2020	Hon. Charles Njagagua, M.P.
197	The Wildlife Conservation and management (amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Daniel Maanzo, M.P.
198	The Wildlife Conservation(amendment) Bill,2020	Hon. Ruweida Obo, M.P.

X 4